
 
 
To: The Honorable Daniella Levine Cava, Mayor, Miami-Dade County 
 The Honorable Anthony Rodriguez, Chairman 
 and Members, Board of County Commissioners, Miami-Dade County 
       
From: Felix Jimenez, Inspector General 
 
Date: May 12, 2025 
 
Subject: Former Employee of the Department of Transportation and Public Works 

(DTPW), his Wife, and a County Contractor Pled Guilty to Bribery Scheme in 
Federal Court,  Ref. IG21-0015-I 

 
Based on an anonymous complaint, an OIG-initiated investigation resulted in the guilty 
pleas of three individuals involved in a bribery scheme concerning the procurement of 
Miami-Dade County railway parts and maintenance for the Department of Transportation 
and Public Works (DTPW). The scheme involved the former Acting General 
Superintendent of DTPW’s Track and Guideway (Rail) Division, Dale Robinson, and his 
spouse, Marcia Robinson, and Jessie Bledsoe, the principal and owner of JB Railroad 
Contracting, Inc. (JB Railroad), a county contractor providing the removal and 
replacement of railway fasteners and other rail-related maintenance services. The 
Robinsons had entered guilty pleas to federal offenses on April 25, 2025; and Mr. Bledsoe 
had entered his guilty plea last Friday, May 9, 2025.  All three were charged by the United 
States Attorney’s Office, Southern District of Florida, with felonies related to a bribery 
scheme whereby Mr. Robinson illegally solicited Mr. Bledsoe for money in exchange for 
recommending contract awards. These contracts were partially funded by Federal grant 
monies.  The case was initiated by the OIG and investigated jointly with the Federal 
Bureau of Investigation Miami Area Corruption Task Force.   
 
Mr. Robinson and Mr. Bledsoe were charged with Bribery Concerning Programs 
Receiving Federal Funds, in violation of 18 U.S.C. Sections 666(a)(1)(B) and 2. Mr. 
Robinson solicited and received bribes from Mr.  Bledsoe. Mrs. Robinson was charged 
with Misprision of a Felony, in violation of 18 U.S.C. Section 4, for having knowledge of 
the actual commission of Mr. Robinson’s bribery offense, concealing the same, and failing 
to make the same known to appropriate authorities.  
 
The Federal funds at issue were grant funds awarded to the County from the Federal 
Transit Administration (FTA). The federal grants, CARES Act 5307 Operating Assistance, 
Capital Security and Capital Cost of Contracting, Federal Award Identification No. FL-
2020-051-00, provided DTPW funds to help respond to and recover from the COVID-19 
pandemic and Federal Award Identification No. FL-2022-048-00, funds for rail and vehicle 
maintenance.  
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A portion of the FTA funds were used by DTPW for track maintenance and repair on the 
County’s Metrorail system. Mr. Bledsoe, through his company JB Railroad, performed 
that work for the County beginning in 2018 as a subcontractor.  JB Railroad, a North 
Dakota corporation, doing business as a Foreign Profit Corporation in Florida, registered 
as a County vendor in 2019, and received its first County contract in 2020.   
 
The investigation found that sometime in May 2020, due to the COVID-19 pandemic, 
DTPW entered into a non-competitive, Emergency Metrorail Track Fastener 
Replacement Contract with JB Railroad to remove and replace track fasteners, Contract 
No. E-10072-1. Mr. Robinson, as Acting General Superintendent, was actively involved 
in recommending and facilitating the award to JB Railroad. The contract was extended in 
February 2021, for an additional 25,000 track fasteners and additional allocation of $1.5 
million. Also in February of 2021, JB Railroad was added as a vendor on the Pool Contract 
No. 9418-0/16 to provide thermite welds and other rail changes.  
 
In January 2021, prior to the track fastener contract extension and thermite welding 
contract, Dale Robinson solicited money from Mr. Bledsoe. The payments were to be 
concealed and disguised as payments from JB Railroad to another railroad company, 
Tailored Railroads & Consulting LLC (Tailored Railroads).   Marcia Robinson established 
Tailored Railroads in Maryland that January. Mrs. Robinson was listed as Tailored 
Railroads’ resident agent with her Maryland residence as its business address.1 Mrs. 
Robinson was also the authorized signer on Tailored Railroads’ bank account.  Mrs. 
Robinson was, at that time, employed as a legal assistant in the District of Columbia, and 
had no previous experience in the railroad industry.  
 
Between February 2021 and February 2022, Tailored Railroads issued four invoices to 
JB Railroad.  The investigation showed that Tailored Railroads existed solely to receive 
the bribe payments. Tailored Railroads did not perform any actual railroad related work 
or services for JB Railroad or anyone else. Between February 2021 and March 2022, JB 
Railroad issued four checks to Tailored Railroads totaling $75,956.   
 
During that same period, JB Railroad was paid by the County for work under its contract 
to remove and replace fasteners on the Metrorail track and for the thermite welding 
contract with DTPW.  JB Railroad also qualified for and was awarded work under a rail-
parts pool Contract No. FB-01645P.  In total, JB Railroad was paid over $7 million for 
work under the three contracts, $4,447,860 for the COVID emergency contract, $212,017 
for the thermite welding contract, and $2,341,995 through the rail-parts pool contract.     
 
Dale Robinson began his employment with DTPW on January 30, 2017; he resigned in 
February 2025. Mr. Robinson had over 35 years of railroad work experience, including in 
the Washington D.C. Metro Area Transit Authority and with DTPW. Tailored Railroads’ 
Maryland registration has been forfeited and is no longer current. 
 

 
1 During the time Dale Robinson was employed and living in Miami-Dade County, he maintained a home 
in Maryland where Marcia Robinson lived and worked.   
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On April 25, 2025, Mr. and Mrs. Robinson pled guilty to the Bribery and Misprision of a 
Felony charges, respectively. The Robinsons’ sentencing is scheduled before United 
States District Judge K. Michael Moore on July 10, 2025.    
 
On May 9, 2025, Mr. Bledsoe pled guilty to Bribery.  His sentencing is scheduled for 
August 1, 2025, before United States District Judge Beth Bloom.   
 
 
 
 
Cc: Jimmy Morales, Chief Operating Officer, Office of the Mayor 
 Stacy Miller, Director, Department of Transportation and Public Works 
 Namita Uppal, Director, Strategic Procurement Department 
 Ofelia Tamayo, Director, Internal Compliance Department 
 Yinka Majekodunmi, Commission Auditor 
 Javier Betancourt, Executive Director, Citizens Independent Transportation Trust  
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